
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
July 1, 2010, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the June 3, 2010 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of the Minutes of the June 24, 2010 Special Meeting 
 
C. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 







D. Approval of Resolution 10-14, Updating signers to the Redwood Credit Union CD 
account to be Stephen Mack and Julie Kenny 


 
E. “Yes” vote on the proposed CSDA Bylaws Amendments redefining “voting 


members” and “non-voting associate members” 
 
F. Approval of Resolution 10-16, Approving a Contract for Audit Services with Moss, Levy 


& Hartzheim LLP for FYE 2010-13 
 


Please note: Correspondence received regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda 
is not itemized here, but will be attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and 
addressed with that item during the Board meeting. 


 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 


the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Surplus District Lands Workshop on July 22, 2010 (Est. 


time 15 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Board Goals and Objectives (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re SSWD project list for the Community Development 


Commission’s (CDC) Area Needs Assessment (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action Re CIP Update (Approval of Resolution 10-15, Design and 


Construction Management Services for the Rio Vista addition to CIP IV-B, 
Project 2) (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
E. Discussion/Action re Introduction by title only of Ordinance 45, to amend policy 


5040.20 re Board meeting recordings (Est. time 5 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (Est. time: 15 min.) 
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
 (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 40 min.) 


 
A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of 


Section 54956.9.   
  Name of case:  John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros, et al. 
    SCV 240790 
 
 B. Conference with re Real Property Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.8) 
  Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  District negotiator: Steve Mack; Property negotiator: Unknown 


 2







 3


  Under negotiation: Terms and price 
 
 C. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: near Sweetwater Springs Road (Mt. Jackson) 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and T-Mobile 
 
 D. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
  District negotiator:  Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization:  Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 
 
IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Regular Meeting  
June 3, 2010 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Jim Quigley 
 Wanda Smith 
   
Board Members Absent: Gaylord Schaap (arr. 7:10 p.m.) 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Mike Gogna, District Counsel. 
      Ken McLean 
      Dennis O’Leary 
      Ken Wells 
      Dan Fein 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Jim Quigley at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 


p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.) 
 
Director Wikle moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Smith seconded.  
Motion carried 4-0.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the May 6, 2010 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence 


 1







 (1) Letter dated May 14th from the Foundation of Fair Contracting (FFC) re 
KAT Construction and Response dated May 19, 2010 from the District 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Public comment made by Dennis O’Leary. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.) 


A. (6:33 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Sonoma County Water Agency re (SCWA) Petition 
for Permanent and Temporary Urgency Change of Decision 1610 and the District’s 
filed Protest.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action 
was taken.  


B. (6:47 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 10-11, Providing for Destruction of 
Certain District Records.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion 
ensued.  Director Robb Wilder moved to Approve Resolution 10-11, Providing for 
Destruction of Certain District Records, excluding destruction of the item “Tapes of Board 
Meetings”.  Director Smith seconded.  Motion carried 3-1, with Director Quigley opposed.   


 Direction was given to staff to change District policy to provide for keeping Board tapes at 
least 5 years versus the current policy, which provides that recordings “ . . . will be 
retained for a period of five (5) years.”  (See, Policy 5040.20)  


C. (6:59 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 10-12, Ordering an Election to be Held 
and Requesting Consolidation with the November 2, 2010 General District Election.  
The GM provided an overview of this item.  Director Wikle moved to approve Resolution 
10-12, Ordering an Election to be Held and Requesting Consolidation with the November 
2, 2010 General District Election.  Director Smith seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  


D. (7:01 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Unneeded District lands strategy.  The GM 
provided an overview of this item.  Public comment was made by Dennis O’Leary. 


*** Director Schaap arrived at 7:10 p.m. 


 Public comment was made by Ken Wells.  Public comment was made by Dan Fein.  
Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


E. (7:20 p.m.) Discussion/Action re RFP results for auditing services for FY 2009-10, 
FY 2010-11, and FY 2011-12.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Director 
Schaap moved to accept Moss, Levy & Hartzheim as the District auditor for FY 2009-10, 
FY 2010-11 and FY 2011-12.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.   


F. Discussion/Action re 2011 and 2012 CIP.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Direction was given to staff to proceed with staff’s recommendation to add the Rio Vista 
project to CIP IV-B, Project 2.  The GM provided additional overview regarding upcoming 
capital improvements.  Brief Board discussion ensued.  The GM provided further 
overview.  Further Board discussion ensued.  Public comment was made by Ken 
McLean.  Board discussion ensued.  Comment was made by District counsel Mike 
Gogna.  No action was taken. 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:02 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided an overview and answered Board questions on the following subjects: 
 


 2







1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Rainfall 
5. CIP IV-B, Project 1 
6. CIP IV-B, Project 2 
7. Toilet Rebate Program 
8. In-House Construction projects 
10. Gantt Chart  
 
Board questions ensued. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:07 p.m.) 


 
Director Smith commented on the 1950s world class fishing on the Russian River. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:12 p.m.) 
 
At 8:12 p.m. President Quigley announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 8:13 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8:29 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
actions on Closed Session items was announced: 
 


A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) 
of Section 54956.9 


 Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros., et al.  
    SCV 240790 
  No action was taken. 
 


B. Conference with Real Property Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.8) 


 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
 District negotiator: Steve Mack; Property negotiator: Unknown 
 Under negotiation: Terms and price  


  No action was taken. 
 
 C. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54957.6): 
  District negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
  No action was taken. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:30 p.m.) 
 
1. Board Goals and Objectives 
2. CDC Area Needs Assessment 
3. July 22 Workshop on Unneeded Lands 
4. CIP update – Rio Vista addition progress 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:33 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 


 3







 4


 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:02 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:07 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:12 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of Section 54956.9

		 Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros., et al. 

		B. Conference with Real Property Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.8)

		 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville

		 District negotiator: Steve Mack; Property negotiator: Unknown

		 Under negotiation: Terms and price 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:30 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
Board of Directors Meeting  
SPECIAL Meeting  
June 24, 2010 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Wanda Smith 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Jim Quigley 
  
Board Members Absent: Gaylord Schaap 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
   
Others in Attendance:     None 
 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Jim Quigley at 6:34 p.m. 
 
 


II. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 
 
None. 


 
 


III. ADMINISTRATIVE 


A. (6:34) Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 10-13, Revising Resolution 09-
22 to Include Main Replacement Work on Rio Vista Terrace in the Sonoma County 
Redevelopment Agency Grant Request and the District’s 2010-2015 CIP and 
Requesting an Amendment to the Redevelopment Agency Funding Agreement to 
Include the Additional Project in the Agreement Attachment 1 Project Summary for 
the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Director Wikle moved to Approve Resolution 10-13, Revising Resolution 09-22 to Include 
Main Replacement Work on Rio Vista Terrace in the Sonoma County Redevelopment 
Agency Grant Request and the District’s 2010-2015 CIP and Requesting an Amendment 
to the Redevelopment Agency Funding Agreement to Include the Additional Project in the 
Agreement Attachment 1 Project Summary for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011.  
Director Smith seconded.  Motion carried 3-0.  


 


 1







 2


 
ADJOURN 


 
The meeting adjourned at 6:37 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Steve Mack 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


APPROVED:  
 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: _____ _______ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______  ______ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

		III. ADMINISTRATIVE

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: July 1, 2010 
  
Subject: Resolution 10-14, Updating signers to the Redwood Credit Union Account 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Approve resolution. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
Several years ago the District opened an account at Redwood Credit Union to purchase a 
CD.  Named signers on the account were District Board members and Chuck Howell.  Chuck 
is no longer the General Manager, and Board members have also changed since the account 
was opened -- we need to update the signers to the account.  Staff recommends not naming 
Board members as signers since our Board members are subject to change every two years.  
Resolution 10-14 would update the authorized signers on the RCU account to be Steve Mack 
and Julie Kenny.  
 
The Resolution verbiage was provided by Redwood Credit Union.  The signature card 
referenced in the Resolution is not included in your packet because it contains personal, 
confidential information of the proposed signers.  It will be available for your review at the 
Board meeting. 
 


 
 







Resolution No. 10-14 
 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT DESIGNATING SIGNERS TO THE REDWOOD 


CREDIT UNION ACCOUNTS  
  
 


 BE IT RESOLVED, that Stephen Mack and Julie Kenny are authorized to open 
and maintain accounts with the Redwood Credit Union as indicated on this card, a copy 
of which has been presented to the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the persons identified as authorized signers 
on this card are authorized to conduct all business on financial institution accounts for 
this corporation or unincorporated association, including but not limited to (1) opening 
accounts, (2) closing accounts, and (3) depositing and withdrawing funds consistent 
with indicated signature authorizations. 
 


      
 


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of 
the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, 
at a meeting held on July 1, 2010, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Wanda Smith        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 





		Item III-D - Designating Signers to RCU Accounts

		Item III-D.1 RES 10-14 Designating Signers to RCU Accounts






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-E   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : July 1, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF 2010 CSDA BYLAWS AMENDMENTS   
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve California Special Districts Association 
(CSDA) 2010 Bylaws Amendments    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 


CSDA has requested voting on several changes to their bylaws: 
 


• Amendment #1 changes Independent Special District to “Regular Voting 
Member”. 


 
• Amendment #2 updates member definitions. 


 
• Amendment #3 changes wording in two sections to state voting members 


must be “in good standing”. 
 


• Amendment #4 updates the term of office. 
 


• Amendment #5 adds language to the balloting section. 
 


• Amendment #6 adds a paragraph to the section on director 
disqualification. 


 
• Amendment #7 adds the Audit Committee to the list of standing 


committees. 
 
The full language of the proposed amendments are included in the Board packet.  
These changes seem reasonable and staff recommends approval. 





































		Item III-E CSDA Bylaws Amendments

		Meeting Date : July 1, 2010 



		Item III-E.1 Ballot and CSDA information packet

		CCF06232010_00000

		CCF06232010_00001

		CCF06232010_00002

		CCF06232010_00003

		CCF06232010_00004

		CCF06232010_00005

		CCF062p5

		CCF06232010_00006








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-F 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: July 1, 2010 
  
SUBJECT: Resolution 10-16, Approving a Contract for Audit Services with Moss, Levy & 
Hartzheim LLP for FYE 2010-13 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Approve Resolution 10-16, contingent on Moss, Levy’s agreement to amend the term of the 
contract to be three years as contemplated in their response to the District’s RFP, instead of 
the one year referenced in their letter of engagement. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


$6,498 for each of three fiscal years.  
 
DISCUSSION: 


At the June Board meeting, staff was directed to send a letter of acceptance to Moss, Levy & 
Hartzheim to conduct the District’s annual audit for FY 2009-10, FY 2010-11, and FY 2011-
12.  Staff sent the letter of acceptance, and Moss, Levy et al. prepared a letter of 
engagement for the District’s signature. 
 
Staff has reviewed the letter of engagement and finds it acceptable except that it only 
references a one-year contract instead of the three-year commitment requested by the 
District’s RFP.  Staff has contacted Moss Levy about this, but our contact person there is out 
of the office until June 28.  Assuming Moss Levy will have no objection to the change, staff 
will update the contract attached as part of your packet before the Board meeting.   
 
It is recommended that the Board approve Resolution 10-16 contingent on the change to a 
three-year term of engagement. 
 







Resolution No. 10-16 
 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT APPROVING A CONTRACT FOR AUDIT SERVICES 


WITH MOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM LLP FOR FYE 2010-13  
 


WHEREAS, pursuant to District Policy 4050.15, “the District Board of Directors shall 
retain an independent auditor to conduct an annual review of District books, records, 
and financial interests; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 30540 (2), the Board shall retain an auditor 
as an independent contractor to conduct an annual audit of the District’s books, records, 
and financial affairs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has evaluated the proposed letter contract of Moss, 
Levy & Hartzheim LLP for audit services for FY 2009-10, FY 2010-11, and FY 2011-12 
at the following rates;  
 


FY ending June 30, 2010 not to exceed $6,498 
FY ending June 30, 2011 not to exceed $6,498 
FY ending June 30, 2012 not to exceed $6,498; and 


 
 
1. NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the 


Sweetwater Springs Water District has reviewed the letter contract presented by 
Moss, Levy & Hartzheim dated June 15, 2010, and finds the terms and conditions 
acceptable; and 


 
2. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the General Manager is authorized to sign said 


Contract 
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on July 1, 
2010, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Wanda Smith        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 







           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 





















		Item III-F -Approving a contract for audit services with Moss Levy

		$6,498 for each of three fiscal years. 



		Item III-F.1 - RES 10-16 Moss Levy audit service contract

		Item III-F.2 Letter of Engagement with Moss Levy

		CCF06252010_00006

		CCF06252010_00007

		CCF06252010_00008

		CCF06252010_00009








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : July 1, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE SURPLUS DISTRICT LANDS   
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation on the progress of the Land 
Management Committee and Other Activities regarding Surplus District Lands and 
provide direction to the Committee and General Manager.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No direct impact. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Land Management Committee held a meeting on June 18 to discuss next steps with 
the District Surplus Lands Strategy.  The focus of the meeting was the public workshop 
on July 22 at the Monte Rio Community Center.  The Committee agreed on the following 
points: 
 


• A draft press release was discussed and approved.  The press release will be 
going to local newspapers and an email list of potentially interested organizations 
and parties.   


• The structure of the meeting was discussed.  The following points were agreed 
upon: 


• The meeting would start out with a short presentation by the General Manager 
and then the meeting would be opened up to attendees. 


• Presentations should be no longer than ten minutes and  
• Prior submittals of materials and PowerPoint presentations would be encouraged 


in the press release.     
• The amount of informality and back and forth may depend on how many people 


show up – the larger the attendance, the more emphasis on meeting structure. 
• A successful outcome would be conceptual proposals for a number of parcels 


from groups that the Board could feel comfortable directing staff to work with.  
• The General Manager will take notes and prepare a meeting summary for 


presentation at a later Board meeting where the Board can decide on future 
actions.   


 
 





		Meeting Date : July 1, 2010 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : July 1, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE 2010 - 2011 DISTRICT GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a staff presentation regarding the 2010 District 
Goals and Objectives. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
One year ago the Board reviewed the District Goals and Objectives which was first 
drafted in 2007 (but last year was its first review, I believe).  The Board suggested 
several changes which were incorporated in a draft circulated for the August 2009 
meeting. At that meeting the Board agreed that the Goals and Objectives should be 
reviewed on an annual basis at the July meeting.   
 
Exhibit 1 is the version circulated for the August meeting with the Status column (the 
column furthest on the right) updated to include activities/accomplishments of the past 
year.  A summary of the past year accomplishments include: 
 


• GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT – highlights of the past year include approval of District Reserve 
Policy, no rate changes, and utilization of multiyear financial planning spreadsheet to show 
long-term effects of Board decisions.   


 
• GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 


FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY – excellent progress has been made with the 
District’s CIP; potable water standards met for the year. 


 
• GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 


REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS – the District’s Emergency Preparedness 
Response and Recovery Plan was updated in fall 2009.  District staff participated in 
annual river flood meeting. 


 
• GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE  - Two staff passed 


certification tests in the past year; Worker’s Comp insurance premiums have 
been reduced.   


 
• GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 


EDUCATION – the District website is continually updated and evaluated for improvements; 
staff are participating in regional forums.   







Discussion Re District Goals and Objectives             2  
July 1, 2010                                                                 


 


 
• GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION – the 


General Manager’s Report has been expanded; annual review of the Goals and 
Objectives is happening.   


 
Please review the attached Goals and Objectives, including the status column, for currency and 
completeness.  Annual review and updating of the Goals and Objectives is a good check on the 
District’s progress and with Board concurrence, we will continue the practice.     
 







Exhibit 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Goals and Objectives, July 2010 
 
GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT 


Priority Task Rationale Action Process Measures Status 


1 


Financial plan 
to meet budget 
needs, shortfalls 
and surpluses (3-5 
yr. Plan) 
 


Meet projected future 
financial obligations 


• Expand budget process  
 to include 3-5 year              
projections 


• Retire high-cost debt 
• Investigate plant/office 


purchases 


Budget committee review of 
Financial Plan 


Reserve Policy met Reserve Policy met 
by 2011 Budget.  
Multi year plan 
developed and 
used in 
presentations. 


 
2 


 
Maintain 
Reasonable Rates 


• Rates tied to costs 
• Fairness to all 


customers 
• Ethics 
• Customer relations 
• Accurate 
 


 
Review rates on annual basis 
as part of budget process 


• Develop rates to fund 
budget 


• Present to public 
• Rate hearing 
• Adopt new rates 


Rates completed on 
schedule 


No water rate 
changes this year.  
Process was on 
schedule. 


 
3 


Investigate 
sources of 
funding 
consistent with 
District goals 
 
 


• Avoid/minimize 
raising rates 


• Complete project 
list faster 


• Take on additional 
projects 


• Regularly evaluate land use, 
grants, loans, bonds, 
foundations 


• More frequently evaluate 
investments 


• Develop Short- and long-term 
Business Plan 


• Evaluate selling lots/parcels 
within District that are not 
being used or planned for 
use. 


• Consider requiring every living 
quarter and business to have 
a separate meter where 
appropriate 


• Research other 
sources of funding 


• Consider hiring a  
grant writer 


• Perform real property 
inventory 


• Consider 
Conservation 
easements 


 


Obtain Funding RDA/RRROC 
funding obtained 
for CIP IV-B.  
Land 
Management 
Program 
underway. 


 
4 


Improve 
Presentation of 
Costs/overruns and 
revenues 
 
 


• Control costs 
• Achieve balanced 


Budget 


• Increase contingency 
planning 


• Effective management 
• Better contract writing 
• Increase communication to 


Board 


Review past change 
orders/issues 


Quarterly review of 
Budget 
End of Year review 


Budget reviewed 
quarterly.  Annual 
Review in August.   


5 Establish and 
Adhere to District 
Reserve Policy 


• Prudent • Adopt District Reserve 
Policy 


• Review Budget annually to 
insure conformance to 
policy. 


Adopt Ordinance; add to 
District  Policies and 
Procedures 


Adoption of policy 
Track reserve levels 
 


Policy adopted.  
Reserve levels 
tracked in budget. 


6 Develop Property 
Management 
Program 


• Effective Use of 
District Resources 


• Possible Source of 
Revenue 


• District Liability 


• Develop Property 
Management Program 


Inventory Property 
Assess Condition/Function 


Active Program Land Management 
Program started. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Goals and Objectives, 2010 
July 1, 2010         
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH FACILITIES THAT ARE 
PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY  


 


Priority Task Rationale Action Process 
 


Measures 
 


 
Status 


 
 


1 
Ensure safe 
collection, 
treatment, storage, 
and distribution of 
clean water 


• Legal requirement 
• Community 
     commitment 


• Meet DPH standards  
• Maintain the existing 


facilities with new pipes 
and materials as 
needed 


• Employee training, 
including environmental 
impacts 


 


• Compliance 
• Evaluate opportunities 


to exceed 
• Monthly report 


• DPH reports of 
noncompliance;  
number of 
violations 


 


Compliance with 
DPH regulations.  
Annual report 
submitted 
according to 
schedule. 


 
2 


Complete Capital 
Improvement 
Projects on 
Schedule and 
within Budget 


Community 
Commitment 
Improve Water Quality 
Improve Fire Protection 
Reduce System Losses 


• Review Capital 
Improvement Program 
on two year basis 


• Complete Annual 
Program 


Staff Review of CIP 
Board Review of CIP 
Complete Annual 
Projects 


• Completion of 
Annual Project 
within Budget 


CIP IV-A, 
Projects 1 and 2 
completed within 
budget.  CIP-IV-B 
started. 


 
3 


Protect Water 
Rights 


Continue to protect our  
water rights 


Maintain right/license 
appropriate for the District 


Status report  • Water rights 
documentation 
from the State 


License obtained 
from State. 


 
4 


Create appropriate 
standards & 
maintain/upgrade 
as needed. 
 


Eliminate redundancy 
and inconsistency 


Progressively create/adopt 
standards 


As projects are 
implemented 


Efficiency of 
operations 


Working with 
B&R to update 
system map 


 2 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Goals and Objectives, 2010 
July 1, 2010         
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL REASONABLE, 
FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 


 


 
Priority Task Rationale Action Process 


 
Measures 


 


 
Status 


 
 


1 
 


Disaster 
preparedness and 
emergency 
planning 


To be prepared for 
emergencies. Respond 
to emergency situations 


• Staff review current 
plans on annual basis. 


 
•  Update current plans as 


appropriate  
 
• Coordinate plans with 


other emergency 
responders 


 
• Update website for 


emergency 
preparedness 


 
 


• Website 
• Local radio station 
• Office of Emergency 


Services 
• Annual disaster 


review 


Ensure plans meet 
goals. 
Ability to respond 


Emergency 
Action Plan was 
reviewed and 
updated in 
October 2009.  
Participated in 
annual River 
flood meeting.   


 3 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Goals and Objectives, 2010 
July 1, 2010         
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 


 
Priority Task Rationale Action Process 


 
Measures 


 


 
Status 


 
 
1 


Provide safe work 
environment 


• Legal requirement 
• Save money on 


workers comp 
claims 


• Ethics 


• Ensure training 
opportunities are 
available for all 
employees Training 


• Providing proper 
equipment 


• Review appropriate 
policies 


 


• Hold regular safety 
meetings 


• Investigate 
inexpensive services 
or bartering services 


• Keep current 
w/industry standards 


• # claims 
• # complaints 


Regular safety 
meetings held.  
Workers Comp 
premiums have 
been reduced. 


2 Build employee 
skills and 
competencies. 


• Optimize 
efficiency 


•  


• Provide training and 
development 
opportunities for all 
employees 


• Create opportunities for 
employee team building 


• Make educational 
opportunities 
available 


• Staff Certification 
levels 


Two staff passed 
certification tests 
in past year. 


 
3 


Develop& 
implement 
programs that will 
enhance staff  
safety, and 
efficiency 


• Stay in business 
• Optimize efficiency 
• Good Morale 


 
• Communicate goals to 


staff 
• Suggestion program 
• Provide a means for 


employee input 
• Ensure adequate 


staffing levels 
•  


Implementation/Staffing  
and Monitoring 


• Low Turnover 
• Customer 


complaints 
• # of training 


sessions 
• Projects 


completed 


Increasing in-
house projects 


 
4 


Regularly & 
effectively 
communicate 
policies and 
procedures to staff 


• Requirement 
• Good business 


practice 
• Risk Management 


Review appropriate      
policies 
• Regularly evaluate 


wages and benefits to 
ensure District is 
competitive with other 
agencies. 


 Staff meetings at 
which policies and 
procedures discussed 


Regular staff 
meetings held 
where policies 
are discussed. 


 4 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Goals and Objectives, 2010 
July 1, 2010         
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND EDUCATION 
 
Priority Task Rationale Action Process Measures Status 


 
1 


 
Be 
aware/proactive 
on external 
events 


• Impact on 
business 


• Avoid crisis 
management 
(be proactive vs. 
reactive) 


• Stay informed 
• Facilitate long-


term planning 


• Ensure information to public 
and media is accurate and 
correct 


• Stay up on local events thru 
media and professional 
organizations 


• Two-way communication 
(letters/GM report) 


• Expand GM report 
• Expand knowledge 


base 


Number and quality of 
communications 
regarding news affecting 
the District 


GM report has 
been expanded.  
Monthly report 
press release will 
be starting with 
this meeting.  
Participation in 
regional meetings 
and forums. 


 
2 


 
Ensure customer 
satisfaction 


• Good business 
practice 


 


• Enhance methods used to 
inform public of upcoming 
changes and special 
meetings (like RRROC) 


• Educate/inform/communicate 
• Respond to customer  


concerns adequately 
• Investigate opportunities for 


customers to provide 
comments. 


• Evaluate e-payment system 
• Improve communication  


Systems (phone system) 
 


• Hold 2-way 
Communications 
between customers 
and District 


 
• Learn what others 


Districts  are doing 


• Positive Customer 
Feedback 


• Track feedback 
• Periodically track 


phone calls 
• Evaluate the 


questions from 
customers 


Website 
improvements.  
Autopay in July 
2009.  Office 
signage redone.    
Staff continues to  
receive many 
compliments. 


 
3 


 
Investigate 
community 
networking/leade
rship 


More effective if we 
work together 


• Conduct public  
outreach meetings. 


• Attend community meetings. 
• Cooperate w/local groups 
• Be proactive in identifying 


issues with the potential to 
affect the District 


• Maintain Website 


 Priority list of contacts 
 
Integration of 
information to District 
issues 


• Number  of new 
contacts 


 
• Event attendance and 


feedback 
 
 


Participating in 
regional 
workshops and 
forums – 
Wastewater Task 
Group, RRROC.  
Website updated 
regularly. 
 


 


 5 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Goals and Objectives, 2010 
July 1, 2010         


 6 


 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 
 


 
Priority Task Rationale Action Process 


 
Measures 


 


 
Status 


 
 


1 
Be aware/proactive 
regarding external 
events 


• Impact on business 
• Avoid crisis 


management (be 
proactive vs. 
reactive) 


• Stay informed 
• Facilitate long-term 


planning 
• Cost effective 
• Efficient 
• Saves time 
 


• Stay up on local events 
thru media and 
professional 
organizations 


• Two-way 
communication 
(letters/GM report) 


• Business Plan 


• Expand GM reporting 
• Board Education 
• Obtain GM buy-in 


• Board learnings 
• Board 


effectiveness 


GM report 
expanded. 


 
2 


Evaluate Board 
effectiveness 


• Ensure Board is doing 
a good job 


• Meet community’s 
needs/expectations 


• Leverage District 
performance 


• Ensure ethics 
 


• Create Board orientation 
package 


• Review appropriateness 
of meeting dates with 
financial needs 


• Board familiarity with 
issues/property 


• Obtain feedback 
• Self and staff 


assessment 
•  


• Implementation and 
Review 


 
• Annual review of 


goals and progress 
 


• # tasks completed/ 
goals achieved 


• Ballot results 
• Finish goal setting 
 


P&P Manual 
given to new 
Boardmembers 
and updated.   
Second annual 
review of Goals. 


3 Maintain Policies 
and Procedures 
Manual 


• Compendium of 
District Policies 


• Information for Board 
Members and Public 
on Board Policies 


• Review P&P by outside 
consultant 


• Add Needed  Policies 
• Annual Review by 


Board 


• Hire Contractor 
• Add Policies as 


needed 


• Completion of 
Contracted Work 


• Number of Added 
Policies 


• Completion of 
Annual Review  


Working on rfp 
for assistance 
with this. 


 





		Item V-B - 2010 District Goals

		Meeting Date : July 1, 2010 



		Item V-B.1 - 2010 District GOALSJuly2010






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : July 1, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
(SSWD) RESPONSE TO THE SONOMA COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
COMMISSION (CDC) RUSSIAN RIVER AREA NEEDS ASSESSMENT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a staff presentation regarding SSWD response to 
the CDC Russian River Area Needs Assessment and provide direction on the appropriate 
response to the CDC. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  no significant additional costs expected.   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
CDC is reaching out to the community to find out what projects are being planned for 
the Russian River Redevelopment Project Area.  Special districts in the area, including 
Sweetwater Springs Water District, have been asked to provide a list of planned 
projects for the next 10 years, through Fiscal Year 2020. The deadline for getting the 
projects into CDC is July 9, 2010.   
 
We don’t have a list of projects for the next 10 years, but we have been identifying 
needed projects.  The District has an approved Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for 
2010 through 2015.  The 2010 and 2011 CIP projects are currently under construction 
(2010, CIP IV-B, Project 1) or under contract for construction (2011, CIP (IV-B, Project 
2).   Staff has planned to revisit the CIP next fall to extend it to 2017 or 2018.   
 
At the June Board meeting staff presented a list of possible projects with approximate 
costs.  Since then staff has put more effort into project identification and cost 
approximation.  Exhibit 1 is an update of last month’s exhibit with better cost 
approximations.  This exhibit shows that the District has approximately $4.4 million of 
projects left on the approved CIP (through 2015).  The list of additional projects has an 
approximate cost of $4.8 million.  In our submittal to the CDC for the CIP IV-B grant 
funding, the District stated that the CDC grant would allow the District to complete the 
approved CIP – list of projects left on the 2010-2015 CIP list estimated at $4.4 million.  
At that time, however District reserves will be close to the Reserve Policy level.   
 
Assuming that the District can continue to accumulate revenue in the range of $300,000 
per year for capital improvements (our current average) from ratepayer revenue, the 
District rates will accumulate approximately $1.5 million in the 5 years represented by 
the additional projects (through 2020).  With an approximate cost of $4.8 million for 
these projects, the District would need the assistance of $3.3 million to complete the 
identified projects by 2020.   







CDC Needs Assessment    2   
July 1, 2010                                                                 


 


 
The list of projects in Exhibit 1 is not a CIP.  Staff will be bringing back the projects, 
along with the projects in the approved CIP in November 2010 to update the current 
CIP.  We will be requesting that the available projects be reviewed and a new 2012- 
2017 or 2018 CIP be approved.  At that time we will have a more complete discussion 
of these projects and in what priority they should be completed.   
 
It’s also important to note that the list of needed capital projects contained in Exhibit 1 
will change over time.  Over time, it is likely that staff will notice other parts of the 
District systems that need repair, replacement, or upgrading, and those projects will be 
added to the District’s capital project needs.  And it’s very unlikely the list will grow 
smaller – none of the problem areas will fix themselves and the list can only grow 
longer.   
 
For now, staff recommend sending the projects listed in Exhibit 1 to CDC as part of their 
needs survey, using the survey forms, and identifying an amount of approximately $3.3 
million that will be needed above ratepayer funds to complete the projects by the end of 
FY 2020, using the logic stated above.   
 







Exhibit 1. Future Sweetwater Springs Water District Capital 
Improvement Projects 


July 2010 
 
Capital improvements are an important element of the District’s work effort.  
The District has an aging infrastructure, an unacceptable amount of unaccounted 
for water and District staff spend too much time reacting to leaks in the 
distribution system.  The District approved the 2010-2015 Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP) in September 2009 but needs to identify projects with a further 
out time horizon.  The approved CIP projects have costs identified by B&R 
Engineers.  The non-approved future CIP project costs are based on $400/lineal 
foot of water main replacement, the projects have not been prioritized, and, of 
course, are subject to further review and change. 
 
Prospective capital projects were identified using the following criteria: 
 


• Number of leaks. 
• District time dedicated to repair the leaks. 
• Costs per Customer. 
• Potential Liability to the District. 
• Storage and booster stations based upon system requirements for fire 


flow, and storage requirements. 
• Impacts to the optimum operation of the system. 
• Elimination of as many dead-end lines as possible, which affect both 


water quality and pressure. 
 
 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Possible Future CIP Projects by 
Year 


 Approved CIP  
Year Projects Estimated Cost
2012    


  


Western, Eastern and Northern Avenues and Orchard 
Lane (GV) -  Replace 3,100 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances. $684,000 


  


Foothill Drive (MR) – Install 1,000 lf of new 8 – inch 
main and appurtenances from B Street northwesterly 
to end of existing 8 – inch main and make connection 
to other side of Foothill where section of road is closed 
to through traffic.   $671,000 


     
  2012 Total $1,355,000 
2013    







Possible Future CIP Projects 2  
July 2010 


 


  


Old Monte Rio Road (GV) – Replace 5,800 lf of existing 
main and appurtenances commencing at the Handy 
Andy Booster and proceeding westerly. 


$936,000 


  


Canyon Seven Rd (GV) – Eliminate dead end mains 
and create loops by installing 1,950 lf of new main and 
appurtenances in Canyon Seven Rd between Sequoia 
Rd and Paradise Ln.   $329,000 


     
  2013 Total $1,265,000 
2014    


  
Hidden Valley Rd (GV) – Replace 3,900 lf of existing 
main and appurtenances on Hidden Valley Rd. $656,000 


  


Guernewood Lane (GV) - – Replace 1,800 lf of existing 
main and appurtenances and abandon 200 lf of 
redundant 4 – inch main along Hwy 116. $318,000 


     
  2014 Total $974,000 
2015    


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage tank with a 
nominal capacity of approximately 120,000 gallons at the 
District–owned site on McLane Avenue. Project to include 
relocation/ construction of the existing hydro-pneumatic 
pump station. $490,000 


  


Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 10,000 gallon 
storage tank with a 30,000 storage tank.   2005 cost 
estimate 


$190,000 


  


Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 10,000 gallon 
tank with a 30,000 gallon storage tank.  2005 cost 
estimate 


$127,000 


  2015 Total $807,000 
     
  Total Approved Post 2011 CIP $4,401,000 
  


 
Possible Future Projects through FY2020   


Not Prioritized 
Approximate 


Cost  


 


Schoeneman pressure zone- main line replacement. 
(GV)    Replace approximately 2,200 ft of existing 
mainline and 31 associated services along Highland 
Way, Sunset Ave, Woodland Dr, Laurel Way. 
(requires completion of Schoeneman Tank) $525,000


 
Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. 
(GV)Replace approximately 1,900 ft of existing $400,000







Possible Future CIP Projects 3  
July 2010 


 


mainline and 27 associated services along Woodland 
Dr in the main pressure zone.  (requires completion of 
Schoeneman Tank) 


 


Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV) 
    Replace approximately 3,280 ft of existing mainline 
and 47 associated services along Wright Dr, Glenda 
Dr, Natoma Dr. (requires completion of Natoma 
Tank) $800,000


 


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) 
    Replace approximately 1,120 ft of existing mainline 
and 18 associated services along Wright Dr. and 
Wright Ln.  (requires completion of Natoma Tank) $275,000


 


Canyon 1 (Rio Nido)  Replace approximately 3,900 
ft of existing mainline and 75 services along Canyon 1 
Rd., Memory Ln., Memory Park Rd. $890,000


 
Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 ft of 
mainline along Main St. $180,000


 
Highway 116 (MR) 
Replace approximately 850 ft of main line.  $280,000


 
Starrett Hill Road (MR) Replace approximately 
1760 ft of main line, 24 services. $380,000


 
Middle Terrace (MR) Replace approximately 1,375 
ft of main line, 17 services. $290,000


 
Park Ave., Cherry St., and Lovers Lane (GV) replace 
approximately 3300 lf of main line, 38 services.   $790,000


 
Total Approximate Cost of Future, Unapproved 
Projects $4,810,000


 
 
 





		Item V-C - CDC Needs Assessment

		Meeting Date : July 1, 2010 



		Item V-C.1 Exhibit 1. Future Capital Improvement Program7-10






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 1, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING RIO VISTA TERRACE ADDITION TO 
CIP IV-B, PROJECT 2, INCLUDING AUTHORIZATION FOR PROFESSIONAL 
ENGINEERING SERVICES  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  1. Receive an update on the addition of the Rio Vista 
Project to CIP IV-B, Project 2; 
 
2.  Approve Resolution 10-15 which authorizes the General Manager to execute an 
agreement with Brelje and Race to provide design and construction management 
professional services for the Rio Vista Terrace Project should it be added to the CIP IV-
B, Project 2 Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency (RDA)/Russian River 
Redevelopment Oversight Committee (RRROC) grant.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  no significant additional costs expected.   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Staff is moving forward with working with Sonoma County CDC staff to amend the CDC 
grant agreement to add the Rio Vista Terrace project to CIP IV-B, Project 2.  RRROC 
supported the project at their June 17, 2010 meeting and it is scheduled for 
consideration by the CDC at their July 13, 2010 meeting.  Should the amendment be 
approved, the District will need design and construction management services for this 
project.  Brelje and Race Consulting Engineers who designed CIP IV-B and who is 
providing construction management services on these projects, has submitted an 
acceptable proposal at a total cost of $69,000 to provide these services for this project 
(attachment 1).  These services would be funded by the CDC grant, should the Rio Vista 
amendment be approved.   
 
Staff recommend approval of Resolution 10-15 so that design of the Rio Vista Terrace 
project can proceed immediately upon CDC approval and construction management 
services will be available when a contract has been award and construction begins 
sometime this fall. 







RESOLUTION 10-15 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR 
CIP IV-B, PROJECT 2, RIO VISTA AMENDMENT, AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL 


MANAGER TO SIGN  
 


WHEREAS, the consulting engineering firm of Brelje and Race is under contract 
to the District for design services for CIP IV-B; and 


 
WHEREAS, CIP IV-B is 75% funded from a Sonoma County Redevelopment 


Agency (RDA)/Russian River Oversight Committee (RRROC) grant approved by the 
Sonoma County Community Development Council (CDC) in December 2009; and  


 
WHEREAS, the construction contract for CIP IV-B, Project 2, main replacement 


on Alder Road, Pebble Way, & Heller Streets in Monte Rio was awarded at a cost which 
has made approximately $350,000 of the RDA/RRROC grant available for additional 
work; and  


 
WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District staff has identified the Rio Vista 


Terrace Project as a needed project that could be constructed within the available grant 
funding, if a project amendment is approved; and  


 
WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District has requested a grant 


amendment from the CDC to include the Rio Vista element in this grant; and  
 
WHEREAS, the CDC is expected to consider this amendment at their July 13, 


2010 meeting; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Brelje and Race has submitted a proposal with a projected cost of 
$69,000.to do the design and construction management services, and the work effort 
and staff rate schedule are consistent with the existing CIP IV-B contract, and: 
 
.  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that: 
 
1.  The General Manager is authorized to execute an agreement for design and construction 
management services for the Rio Vista Terrace project with Brelje and Race Consulting 
Engineers in the amount of $69,000 on behalf of the District upon approval of the RDA/RRROC 
CIP-IV-B grant amendment by the CDC.  
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on July 1, 
2010, by the following vote. 
 







Resolution 10-15. Agreement for Engineering Services with Brelje and Race for Rio 
Vista Terrace           2 
 


 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Wanda Smith        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 







 


 


 


 
 
June 2, 2010 
 
 
 
Steve Mack 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
P.O. Box 48 
Guerneville, CA  95446 
 
Subject: CIP Phase IV-B, Project 3 


B&R File No. 3154.05 
 
Dear Steve: 
 
We understand that the Redevelopment Agency may allow the District to utilize grant funds left 
over from Projects 1 and 2 on a construction project to be defined by the District.  Kevin Gilman 
forwarded the attached project sketch to us last week and followed up with a phone call that 
resulted in one modification (a third fire hydrant).  The project would generally involve 
replacement of approximately 1,300 lineal feet of water main and appurtenances in the Monte Rio 
terraces.  Kevin requested that we prepare a project estimate for the work so that it could be 
compared to the anticipated unexpended grant funds. 
 
A summary of the anticipated project costs for the main replacement project follows. 
 


CIP Phase IV-B, Project 3 
Project Cost Estimate 


  
Design Phase Services $25,600 
Construction Phase Services $43,400 
Construction $226,500 
Contingency Allowance $22,500 


Total $318,000 
 
The estimate assumes that the mainline piping material will be HDPE.  Due to Brelje & Race’s 
recent work with the District and familiarity with the project requirements we anticipate that 
only a single review of the bid documents by staff will be needed.  Our construction management 
services estimate assumes a 60 calendar day contract during which construction will be ongoing 
for approximately 6 weeks.  Breakdowns of the design and construction management services are 
attached and we have included a line item for compaction testing given the County’s recent 
decision to make that item a requirement of the project owner. 
 







Steve Mack 
June 2, 2010 
Page 2 of 2 


   


 


 
 
Should the design effort be authorized in the next 7 to 10 days it will be possible to complete the 
design and bid phases on a schedule that would allow bids to be available at the regular August 
Board meeting (presumes that the County would cooperate in providing encroachment permit 
conditions in a timely manner).   If that were to occur, construction could be accomplished in 
September and October.  If for any number of reasons the bid date slipped to late August, the 
work would still likely be complete by late November.  Please contact me should there be any 
questions. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
BRELJE & RACE 
 
 
___________________________________ 
John S. Locey 
 
enclosures 





















		Item V-D Rio Vista Engineering Services

		Meeting Date: July 1, 2010 



		Item V-D.1 - RES 10-13 Rio Vista Engineering Service with B&R

		Item V-D.2 B&Rproposal letter

		Item V-D.3 B&R Rio Vista Cost Estimate






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: July 1, 2010 
  
SUBJECT: INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCE 45,  AMENDING POLICY 
5040.20 RE BOARD MEETING RECORDINGS 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Introduce, by reading of title only, Ordinance 45 which 
amends Policy 5040.20 regarding Board meeting recordings.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
Policy 5040.20 directs that open sessions of Board meetings shall be tape recorded and 
“the recordings are public record and will be retained for a period of five (5) years.”   
That wording implies that the meeting recordings must be destroyed after five years 
and also identifies a particular technology which we are no longer using.  At the June 
meeting Board Members stated that they felt they should have some discretion in 
keeping the meeting recordings longer than five years.  Ordinance 45 changes the last 
sentence of Policy 5040.20 to read “the recordings are public record and will be retained 
for a period of at least five (5) years”, which gives the Board the requested discretion 
and also changes the wording in this section so that the recording technology can 
change with the times.   
 







ORDINANCE NO. 45 
 


AN ORDINANCE OF SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AMENDING 
POLICY NUMBER 5040.20 REGARDING AUDIO RECORDINGS OF BOARD 


MEETINGS 
 
 


WHEREAS, currently Policy 5040.20 provides that recordings of District Board meetings 
shall be retained for five (5) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board is desirous of having the option to keep audio recordings longer than 
5 years to preserve District history and in-depth Board discussion of District issues  
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District, County of Sonoma, as follows: 
 
Policy Number 5040.20 is hereby amended as follows:  


 5040.20 Open sessions of District Board meetings, both regular and 
special sessions, shall be tape audio recorded.  The Chairperson will announce that 
the meeting is being tape recorded, and the recording device will be placed in plain 
view of all present, so far as practical.  These recordings are public record and will be 
retained for a period of at least five (5) years. 


 
 
Section 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the 
date of its adoption by the Board of Directors.  
 
 
This Ordinance was introduced on July 1, 2010 on roll call by the following vote: 
  
 Jim Quigley    
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 Victoria Wikle:    
 Wanda Smith:    
 Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______ 
     
           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
  
  
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 





		Item V-E -Destruction of Meeting Tapes Ordinance

		Item V-E.1 - Ord 45 Amending Board policy re audio recordings of meetings






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 1, 2010  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.  


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in May were 19,143 units (43.9 


AF) and production was 63.6 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and 
production are both substantially less (60.3 and 82.1 AF, respectively).  The 
attached Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving averages since 2001.   


 
3. Leaks:  The District spends much staff time addressing leaks and we have 


an extensive capital program to replace water mains to reduce leaks in the 
system.  In May we had 22 total leaks and spent 141 man-hours on them.   
That’s a similar number of leaks but a significant increase in man-hours than 
last month (April) and May one year ago (23 leaks, 141 man-hours).  Part of 
the explanation is the return to dry weather which showed many leaks that 
had been covered up by the rainfall runoff.  Figure 2 shows leak history and 
man-hours spent dealing with leaks since 2001.     


 
4. River Flow.  Since summer is here, we are replacing the rainfall chart with 


the river flow chart.  Figure 3 is the 2010 flow at Hacienda gage chart 
starting in May.   This is quite a difference from last year with runoff from 
the watershed still above 300 cfs at the time of this report. 


 
5. Decision 1610 Change Petition Protest.  The District has received no 


information regarding this protest. 
 
6. CIP IV-B, Project 1.  W.A. Forde Associates has completed mainlining on 


Riverlands Road and Bonita Terrace.  By the time of the meeting the Bonita 
Terrace section should be being served from the new mains with Riverlands 
Road soon to follow.  The Handy Andy feed line is the next distribution 
element and work is ongoing with the Schoolhouse Tanks.   







General Manager’s Report  2 of 4 
June 3, 2010 


 
7. CIP IV-B, Project 2.  KAT was given notice to proceed starting on July 2.  


 
8. Toilet Rebate Program.  13 toilet rebates were issued in June as of the 


date of this report at a total cost of $1,865.  A total of 33 rebates have been 
approved, with $5,378 remaining from the funds allocated.     


 
9. In-House Construction Projects.  As of June 23, staff had done 1 in-


house construction project in June that required 10 estimated man-hours.   
 


10.   Gantt Chart.   July in the Gantt Chart shows review of District Goals and 
Objectives which is on the agenda.  Labor negotiations were scheduled to be 
completed in June, but they were not.  However, we are making progress.  
Additions/changes to the Gantt Chart include deleting 2009 activities, adding 
months and activities for the full FY 2011, revising the date for the Urban 
Water Management Plan – the Plan guidelines won’t be out until October at 
the earliest and the due date is currently July 1, 2011, and revision of the 
District CIP in October-December has been added.        


 


 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 4 
June 3, 2010 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Average
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


May-
01


Nov-
01


May-
02


Nov-
02


May-
03


Nov-
03


May-
04


Nov-
04


May-
05


Nov-
05


May-
06


Nov-
06


May-
07


Nov-
07


May-
08


Nov-
08


May-
09


Nov-
09


May-
10


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


40.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Total Pipeline Breaks 
and Hours Spent in Repair, Moving Annual Average


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


450


500


Dec
-00


Apr-
01


Aug
-01


Dec
-01


Apr-
02


Aug
-02


Dec
-02


Apr-
03


Aug
-03


Dec
-03


Apr-
04


Aug
-04


Dec
-04


Apr-
05


Aug
-05


Dec
-05


Apr-
06


Aug
-06


Dec
-06


Apr-
07


Aug
-07


Dec
-07


Apr-
08


Aug
-08


Dec
-08


Apr-
09


Aug
-09


Dec
-09


Apr-
10


B
re


ak
s


-


350


700


1,050


1,400


1,750


2,100


2,450


2,800


3,150


3,500


H
ou


rs


Total Breaks
Total Hours
Linear (Total Hours)
Linear (Total Breaks)


 







General Manager’s Report  4 of 4 
June 3, 2010 


 


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow 2010
Hacienda Bridge, Updated June 24, 2010


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


1,600


1-M
ay


8-M
ay


15
-M


ay


22
-M


ay


29
-M


ay
5-J


un


12
-Ju


n


19
-Ju


n


26
-Ju


n
3-J


ul


10
-Ju


l


17
-Ju


l


24
-Ju


l


31
-Ju


l


7-A
ug


14
-A


ug


21
-A


ug


28
-A


ug
4-S


ep


11
-S


ep


18
-S


ep


25
-S


ep
2-O


ct


May Projected 2010 is logarythmic curve based on May 1- May 25 daily flow


2009
2007
2000-08 Avg
2010
May Projected 2010


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000


Fl
ow


 (c
fs


)







Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10 Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11 Apr-11 May-11 Jun-11 Jul-11 2012
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease Completed
2009 Water Rates Revision Completed
Water Rates Changes


•        Board Direction on Rate Changes
•        Prop 218 Mailing
•        Public Hearing on Proposed Rates
•        Adopt Rates with Budget


2010-11 BudgetPreparation
•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Di i  


December-10


•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
B d t•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April-10


•        Approve Budget May-10
2011-12 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 


December-11


•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April-11


•        Approve Budget May-11
Capital Projects


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Starts


April-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Completed


October-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 2 Construction 
St t•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 2 Construction 
Completed
•        Update District CIP


2010 Urban Water Management Plan July-11


Water Rights Completed, 
License June 


Contract Negotiations 
•        Start Negotiations Preparation December-09
•        Negotiations Start April-10
•        End of Contract June-10


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-11


Policies and Procedures
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and Objectives


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: July 1, 2010 



